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ADDENDUM No.1 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL No.  9119-18-7207 
 

For: An Economic Impact Analysis of Toronto's Taxicab, Limousine and Private 
Transportation Industries  

 
Two-Envelope System 

 
CLOSING DATE: October 26, 2018, 12:00 NOON (LOCAL TIME) 

 
Please refer to the above Request for Proposal (RFP) document in your possession and be 
advised of the following:  
         
 
I) Revision 
  
1. Refer to last paragraph of Section 3.0 Scope of Work, it is to be replaced with the 

following: 
             
           "The study will be completed in five phases, culminating with a Final Report and a 

presentation of the Final Report to senior management of MLS and guests. All 
components are to be completed by April 12 2019." 

 
     

II) Questions & Answers 
 
Q1. Does the City of Toronto currently have access to revenues and expenditures related to 

services offered by PTCs and taxicab services as well as other expenditures in Toronto 
(i.e. research) or will the surveys be used as input for the economic impact assessment? 

 
A1. No, the City does not have access to revenues and expenditures related to services 

offered by taxicab, limousine and private transportation company industries. The surveys 
would be used as input. The City collects to the following data: number of trips (for PTC 
only), and number of drivers for taxi, limo and PTCs.  

 
 The City, through Municipal Licensing and Standards, will work to facilitate data sharing 

between the Vendor and the taxicab, limousine and private transportation company 



  

industries, as appropriate. It is expected that the Vendor will identify data that is required 
as well as its rationale, prior to the City connecting with industries or drivers.  

  
 
Q2. Can you provide an overall scope clarification of the survey? (i.e. preferred sample size, 

response validation, preferred survey method, target audience, etc.). Should we expect 
cooperation from the target audience as it relates to the data collection and surveys? 

 
A2. For the survey portion of the RFP, Municipal Licensing and Standards would like the 

Vendor to undertake:  


- Questionnaire design (in consultation with Municipal Licensing and 
Standards) 

- Finalized questionnaire 

- Survey data collection, hosting, and technical support;  

- Data analysis and coding of open-ended responses;  

- Data tables provided in Excel (raw data);  

- Detailed report of findings; and 

- Presentation of key findings.  

 

The survey will be largely reliant on self-reporting from taxi, limo and PTC drivers. The 
City will facilitate communications to all drivers. Drivers may participate on a voluntary 
basis. The vendor is expected to develop a sample size that allows for some user 
segmentation (e.g. drivers with 10+ years' experience versus new drivers; full-time 
drivers versus part-time drivers) within the scope and allocated budget range. 

 
 
Q3. Please confirm fee structure (i.e. time and materials, or lump sum) 
 
A3. Lump sum. 

 
 
Q4. Is the City of Toronto able to provide a list of plan takers? 
 
A4. No, the City cannot provide a list of plan takers.  
 
Q5. Will the City of Toronto grant an extension for proposal submissions? 
 
A5. No, the City of Toronto is not granting an extension.  
 
Q6. Is there an in-house repository of database that will be shared with the contractor?  
          - For the survey of taxicab, limousine and PTC drivers, does the city have contact details 

of all the licensed/registered drivers? Alternatively, do we have on-board key 
stakeholders like taxi associations, Uber, Lyft, that can assist us in conducting survey 
and also provide some aggregate data?     

         - Does the City of Toronto have demographic and earning information for 
licensed/registered drivers?   



  

        - We understand that the number of vehicles permitted for private transportation 
companies is not restricted. Does the City have record for the total number of drivers 
working as private transportation drivers? This will be crucial to extrapolate survey data 
to the industry.   

 
 
A6. The City does not have an in-house repository of data that can be shared. However, we 

do have the number of trips taken by PTCs (per day), and the number of drivers for taxi, 
limo and PTCs. We also have contact information for all licensees as well as the taxi 
brokerages, limo associations and PTCs. The City will facilitate all communications to 
the licensees. We currently have approximately 15,000 vehicle-for-hire drivers (taxi and 
limo) and 65,000 PTC drivers.  

 
Q7. Would Uber and Lyft cooperate with the City in meeting data requirements for the study? 

Would it be willing to provide data as illustrated below on a confidential basis based on 
City’s relationship with Uber:  

- Number of registered users of Uber/Lyft in GTA, their annual expenditure on Uber/Lyft, 
average price per km, number of rides split by short/mid/long  

- Prices and earnings of drivers in GTA at an aggregate level for full-time/part-time 
workers if possible by age and gender 

 
A7. The participation of the taxi, limo and PTC industries will be on a voluntary basis. The 

industries have been approached, and are aware of the studies that City Council 
directed Municipal Licensing and Standards to complete. The City will facilitate all 
communications to licensees. It is expected that the successful Vendor creates a 
detailed list of possible data needs, and their rationales.  

   
 
Q8. In addition to economic and social impacts, is the City looking for an assessment of 

environmental impacts? 
 
A8. The main scope of work is related to economic and social impacts; however, if 

environmental impacts, or any other themes, are identified during the research and 
analysis, it is important to document in the final report.  

 
 
Q9. What data will the City be prepared to provide the successful consultant? Specifically, 

will the City be willing to provide the following information: 
a. Number of taxi licenses, limousines per year for the last 5 years 
b. Number of licensed drivers 
c. Number of trips per year 
d. Demographic data and/or surveys of users or drivers (i.e., surveys that outline the 

demography of users or drivers, annual incomes or other characteristics) 
e. Annual revenue figures for taxis, limousines, PMTs as available? 
 
A9. The City can provide the following: 
  

- Number of taxi licenses, limousines per year for the last 5 years 
- Number of licensed drivers (PTC is as of September 2016) 
- Number of trips per year, for PTC only 

 



  

The City is unable to provide annual revenue figures for taxis, limousines and PTCs as this 
is not collected.  
 
Public and relevant previous research materials, for example, reports such as "Determining 
the Appropriate Number of Taxicabs and its Impacts for the City of Toronto," are also 
available as reference.  

 
 
Q10. Will the City support the execution of the proposed survey by providing a list of contacts 

for dispatchers and licensed taxi drivers? Specifically, will the City encourage licensed 
medallion holders to participate in a survey(s)? 

 
A10. The City will facilitate all communications with licensees, and encourage licensees to 

participate on a voluntary basis.  
 
 
Q11. Please clarify if the proposed study is meant to be from the date relevant legislation was 

enacted or from the time PTCs arrived in Toronto. 
 
A11. The proposed study is meant to be from the date of implementation (September 2016) to 

today.  
 
 
Q12. Will the City provide the transaction data for changes in ownership of medallions? 
 
A12. The transfer of plates is self-reported. The City can relay this information to the Vendor.  
  
 
Q13. Will the final report or any parts of the final report be made public? 
 
A13. The Final report is intended to inform the research and analysis of the Vehicle-for-Hire 

review. It is also anticipated to be released as an attachment to the final Staff Report. 
Please note City of Toronto documents are also subject to the Municipal Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Act.  

 
 
Q14. Can the City please clarify which datasets and literature are envisioned to be made 

available to the successful proponent, and over which time periods the data will 
correspond to? 

 
A14. See A9. The City is unable to provide annual revenue figures for taxis, limousines and 

PTCs as this is not collected.  
 

 
 
Q15. Can the City please clarify which party will be responsible for supplying the data?  Will 

the successful proponent rely on datasets sent by the City, or will the successful 
proponent be expected to commit time and expenses to data acquisition?  Or will it be a 
combination of both? 

 



  

A15. The City can provide the data as noted in A9. The Survey conducted by the Vendor will 
also generate a dataset. The City can work in collaboration with the Vendor on any other 
additional data needs, as appropriate.  

 
 
Q16. Does the City require a breakdown of findings into the categories of taxicab, limousine, 

and private transportation specifically, or is the Consultant able to propose a different 
breakdown? 

 
A16. The breakdown may also be vehicle-for-hire (taxi and limo) and private transportation 

company.  
 
 
Q17. To fully understand the economics of Toronto’s taxicab, limousine, and private 

transportation industries, we acknowledge that it may be necessary to also understand 
other transportation modes such as car rentals, transit, and personal vehicles.  Can the 
City please clarify whether the review of additional ground transportation modes is within 
or outside of the scope of this assignment? 

 
A17. The review of additional ground transportation modes is outside of the scope of this 

assignment.  
 
 
Q18. Recognizing that there are challenges with respect to drawing the link between cause 

and effect, is the City anticipating a commentary on how the Vehicle-for-Hire Bylaw in 
and of itself has directly affected residents, consumers, and the City?  Or is it 
satisfactory to comment more generally on quality of life, consumer choice, accessibility, 
etc. before and after the Bylaw came into effect, but without attributing the variances to 
the Bylaw versus external factors? 

 
A18. The City recognizes the limitations with drawing cause and effect. It is anticipated that 

the Vendor will note these limitations in the final report. It is satisfactory to comment 
generally, but informed by the qualitative and quantitative analysis completed during the 
study. The Vendor may note the possibility of additional research or data needed.  

 
 
 
Q19. Is the City able to provide clearer parameters with regards to the depth of surveying and 

on-the-ground research that is envisioned?  For example, is there a target number of 
survey responses, or a minimum number of stakeholders we are expected to meet with, 
etc.? 

 
A19. Please see A2 for the survey. The Vendor, in collaboration with Municipal Licensing and 

Standards, is expected to hold a minimum of 1 stakeholder consultation with taxi, limo 
and PTC drivers during Phase Two: Background Research and Methodology.  

 
 
Q20. Does the City envision the Consultant to conduct surveys and stakeholder consultation 

in any languages in addition to English? 
 



  

A20. The survey and stakeholder consultation will be conducted in English. If a participant 
identifies a need for translation, the City will provide this service.  

 
 
 
Q21. On page 19 of 53, please clarify the requirement “Proposed project staffing over the 

assignment period should include numbers by "classification" for key staff as well as all 
other staff 

 
A21. Proposed project staffing should list if the work is being undertaken by which staffing 

level (e.g. junior, senior, manager, etc.). 
 
 
Q22. Will data pertaining to revenues, expenditures, ridership, etc. from taxi services, 

limousine, and PTCs be provided? 
 
A22. The City does not collect this information. The City will facilitate all communications to 

licensees. It is expected that the successful Vendor creates a detailed list of possible 
data needs, and their rationales. 

 
Q23. Who will be administering the survey? 
 
A23. The Vendor. The City will facilitate communications to licensees.  
 
 
Q24. Due to copyright, is the use of the City of Toronto logo acceptable within our proposal?  
 
A24. Please do not use the City's logo within your proposal.  
 
 
Q25. Is there an expectation to produce estimates of direct, indirect and induced economic 

impacts (i.e. as per application of input/output model multipliers)?  We note this is 
potentially a significant effort and affects allocation of resources.  The RFP does not 
appear to make mention of these. 

 
A25. No, there is no expectation of input/output model multipliers.  
 
 
Q26. To what extent is there an expectation of formal surveys (e.g. statistically reliable sample 

based phone surveys as opposed to web-surveys)?  Again there are significant resource 
allocation impacts. 

 
A26. The City does not have a proposed survey method, and supports any survey method 

that meets the objective of the stated scope (see Q2 for more detail).  
 
 
Q27. Does the budget range cited include HST?   If yes, how will HST be handled during the 

cost phase of the point rating system, since out-of-province jurisdictions are not 
necessarily required to charge HST. 

 



  

A27. The budget range does not include HST. The evaluation team will be looking at price, 
excluding HST. The Ontario tax code applies to all bids regardless of origin.  

 
 
Q28. The RFP mentions six hard-copies, but it is stated as a preference.   In the interest of the 

environment and paper reduction, is one hard-copy and original and a soft-copy on a 
USB stick acceptable? 

 
A28. The minimum number of hard-copies is four (4) plus one (1) marked original. 
 
 
 
 
Should you have any questions regarding this addendum contact Olawunmi Adigun at 
olawunmi.adigun@toronto.ca   
 
Please attach this addendum to your RFP document and be governed accordingly.  Proponents 
must acknowledge receipt of all addenda in their Proposal in the space provided on the Proposal 
Submission Form as per Appendix A, Section 4 - Addenda of the RFP document.  All other 
aspects of the RFP remain the same. 
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Kennedy, M.Eng, P.Eng  
Acting Manager, Professional Services  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


